
Council Meeting Agenda – December 14, 2023 

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE CALL AND IN-PERSON 

The Council may entertain a motion in open session to enter into a closed session, in 
accordance with Section 3-305(b) of the Open Meetings Act (Maryland Code, General 
Provisions Article). 

• Call to Order: Alexander
• FY23 Audit Report: Eva Webb (Page 2)
• Weather Report: Keith Allen
• Opportunity for Council to Hear Residents' Comments: TBD
• Approve November 16 Council Meeting Minutes (Page 48)
• Manager's Report: Silliman (Page 65)
• Discussion and possible introduction of the 2024 Election Plan 

(Page 66)
• Committee Reports
• Ordinance Development Process: Blander (Page 81) 
• Discussion of possible building code revisions: Alexander
• Discussion and possible introduction of a building code amendment 

restricting bio retention planter boxes (Page 89)
• Treasurer's Report: Blander (Page 94)
• Opportunity for Council to Hear Residents' Comments: TBD
• Adjournment: Alexander

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88331175094?pwd=OFNvZkFzbnA4c0ovdWI4KzA1Q2JjU
T09 

Meeting ID: 883 3117 5094 
Passcode: 525784 One tap mobile: (301) 715-8592 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88331175094?pwd=OFNvZkFzbnA4c0ovdWI4KzA1Q2JjUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88331175094?pwd=OFNvZkFzbnA4c0ovdWI4KzA1Q2JjUT09


2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



Council Meeting Minutes – November 16, 2023 

VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE CALL AND IN-PERSON 

The audio recording for this meeting is available on the Village website. 

Council Members Present: Andrew Kauders; Jeff Blander; Susan Fattig; Arthur Alexander; Katie 
Howard 

Other Attendees Include: Village Manager: Michael Silliman; Village Attorney: Ron Bolt; Marty 
Langelan; Paul Weller; Natalie Welle; Paula Goldberg; Keith Allen; Susan Kahn; Jean Sperling; 
Larry Wasson; Hiromi Maruyama; Doug Grob; Susan Kahn; Naomi Naierman.  

7:31 PM Call to Order: Alexander 

7:32 PM Weather Report: Keith Allen. Allen reported that he is whistling a different toon this 
year compared to last year as he expects more snow this year. 

Arthur Alexander mentioned that the survey received a record-breaking number of responses 
and reassured everyone that we are enforcing our building code. 

Opportunity for Council to Hear Residents' Comments 

Marty Langelan asked if there is a standard operating process for introducing legislation. Susan 
Fattig and Arthur Alexander explained that such a procedure was discussed in 2021 but that has 
fallen by the wayside. 

Susan Kahn asked if a Council member changing their mind will result in the reintroduction of 
legislation. Susan also asked about the creation of the survey as several questions were unclear. 

Jean Sperling said she was very disturbed by comments by Alexander that people don’t believe 
the building code isn’t being enforced. Sperling encouraged the Village to publish each building 
project’s permit approval checklist. Sperling also stated that the survey had some weaknesses. 

Larry Wasson referenced a historical situation where the building code was not followed. 

Doug Grob stated that the building lot coverage at 3419 Cummings was not to Village code. The 
builder was made to amend their plans to comply with the Village code. 

Fire Board Update: Paul Weller and Natalie Straus Welle 

Arthur Alexander noted we have an opening on the Fire Board. Paul Weller delivered his report 
noting that the Fire Department responded to 153 calls in October. 

48

https://martinsadditions.org/governance/council_meeting_agendas_and_minutes/index.php


Manager’s Report: Silliman 
Village Manager Michael Silliman delivered his report with 10 separate updates. 

8:43 PM Approve October 19 Council Meeting Minutes 
Arthur moved and Susan seconded. Jeff Blander voted against. The minutes pass 4 to 1. 

8:48 PM Committee Reports 
Marty Langelan delivered the Election Committee report. The committee has consolidated five 
election-related documents and will have an election plan ready for the Council to consider by 
the December 14th meeting. In the packet for this meeting there was a draft RFP to hire a 
consultant to assist the committee in verifying the voter roll this year. 
Arthur moved to issue the RFP and Katie seconded. This passed unanimously. 

Keith Allen delivered the Community Engagement Committee report. Allen said the Halloween 
event was a huge success and was well attended. 

Naomi Naierman delivered the Antisemitism Awareness Task Force report. The scope of the 
work they developed is in the packet for this meeting. Naierman discussed the education 
training program they are planning. 

Arthur Alexander reported that the Storm and Ground Water Task Force is looking into training 
opportunities for the Task Force members. 

9:11 PM Annual Survey Results and Discussion 

Jeffery Blander presented his analysis of the survey results. The presentation is attached to 
these minutes. 

Discussion of building code review and possible amendments 

Arthur Alexander noted that we have prepared a draft to amend the building code to restrict 
structures, like bio retention planter boxes, in the side yard setbacks. Arthur said it will be on 
the agenda for the December meeting. 

Arthur provided additional comments about possible ways to amend the building code to 
restrict the size of houses in the Village. Arthur did some background research and looked at 
neighboring municipalities. Susan Fattig recommended we hire an outside consultant. Andrew 

49



Kauders said we care about limiting the lot coverage. Katie Howard voiced her support for 
limiting the size of houses and maintaining the green space. 

10:05 PM Treasurer's Report: Blander 

Jeff Blander delivered his report. The audit is complete, and the final report is forthcoming. 

10:06 PM Opportunity for Council to Hear Residents' Comments: 

Naomi Naierman commented that surveys are a science and recommended we hire an expert 
to create future surveys. Naierman stated that Susan are Arthur are not respecting the results 
of the survey as only 20% of respondents wanted the expansion of the Ethics ordinance. 

Larry Wasson asked Jeff to clarify what happened regarding Arthur saying there would be no 
vote until the Survey was complete. Jeff confirmed it was in writing, and Arthur explained the 
misunderstanding from his perspective. He was stating that there would be no vote on 
adoption, until a survey was conducted. Jeff understood him to be stating that there would not 
be a vote on introduction. 

Susan Kahn thanked everyone, especially Jeff for the survey presentation and Michael for 
including the crosswalk at Bradley in the new sidewalk plan. 

Marty Langelan asked how much notice residents will have of a possible ethics vote on the 
December meeting agenda. The Council agreed to delay the ethics vote to January at the 
earliest and discussed a possible listening session prior to that. 

Doug Grob thanked the Council for agreeing to have a discussion and possible introduction of a 
policy restricting bio retention planter boxes in the side yard setbacks. Doug further discussed 
the County requirement of these bio retention planter boxes and commented on the 
maintenance and lifetime of these structures. 

Larry Wasson requested improved microphones for Council meetings. 

Katie Howard commented on the survey comments that mentioned a new text alert system. 
Michael Silliman commented that he is developing a plan to transfer to a new email and text 
alert system. 

Jeff Blander asked the Village Manager if the Village is watching out for any more bio retention 
planter boxes. Michael Silliman responded by saying he is double checking each new project. 
He has heard of other municipalities now dealing with these bio retention planter boxes. 

50



10:39 PM Adjournment: Alexander 

Andrew moved and Katie Seconded. Adjournment was unanimous. 

51



12/6/23

1

Discussion
Methods, Trends, 

Considerations
VMA Annual Survey 2023

November 16th 2023

Council Member Blander

1

Torture the data and it will 
confess to everything!

In God we trust, all others must bring Data.

Errors using inadequate data are much 
less than those using no data at all.

If we have data, let’s look at 
data. If all we have are opinions, 

let’s go with mine.

2

52



12/6/23

2

Sampling….
Street N Percent N Percent N Percent N Percent

Bradley Ln 18 11% 14 10% 13 10% 16 11%
Brookville Rd 10 6% 4 3% 3 2% 3 2%
Chestnut St 8 5% 6 4% 10 8% 10 7%
Cummings Ln 8 5% 9 6% 9 7% 11 8%
Delfield St 10 6% 7 5% 3 2% 5 4%
Melville Pl 2 1% 3 2% 5 4% 4 3%
Oxford St 3 2% 3 2% 3 2% 2 1%
Quincy St 12 7% 11 8% 12 10% 16 11%
Raymond St 19 11% 10 7% 21 17% 18 13%
Shepherd St 12 7% 7 5% 11 9% 13 9%
Summit Ave 11 7% 11 8% 10 8% 11 8%
Taylor St 8 5% 7 5% 3 2% 10 7%
Thornapple St 6 4% 7 5% 6 5% 8 6%
Turner Ln 14 8% 17 12% 15 12% 15 11%
Total Responses 168 144 124 142

Households: 321
Qualified Voters (2022): 627

2017 2020 2021 2022

Taxable Households: 330
Qualified Voters (2023): 747

2023
N Percent

19 11%
5 3%
11 6%
9 5%
9 5%
3 2%
2 1%
18 10%
18 10%
12 7%
9 5%
10 6%
10 6%
16 9%
22 13%
173 100% Blank

3

Note on Sampling Frame
• 581 emails sent using constant contact + 16 hand delivered surveys
• Response rate of 29.9% (173/597): 173 completed surveys from the 597

total emails (581) sent using Constant Contact system and those hand
delivered (16) whose responses manually entered.
• There are approximately 330 taxable households located within VMA.
• The voter roll for 2023 was 747

Questions: 
• What is our goal? Households (330) or individuals (747)?
• Who are we missing and why (747 – 581 = 166)?
• What should our sampling frame be going forward?
• What about youth representation (parental consent)?

4

53



12/6/23

3

Survey Design – How to Strengthen and Improve for Next Time

The good

• Inputs were considered and incorporated for many item responses to strengthen the quality
of the survey, including inter-item reliability, construct and criterion validity, and internal
consistency.

The not-so-good:

• Resident or committee input limited

• Normative council member administrative meeting canceled last minute and a “closed”
ballot vote taken on key substantive items

• No source documentation or full visibility into item development

5

Go Forward

• Recommendation: The council should widely support a more
inclusive process that embraces interested resident, committee, and
council members. For their inputs and discussion as normative and
encouraged.
• Solution: Host an open forum on the survey design, distribute a draft

to all committee members and residents, encourage their feedback
and input.
• Question: Who determines administrative policy and decision making

on Annual Survey Development? How does Open Meetings Act apply
to opinion questions regarding services, code, and policies?

6

54



12/6/23

4

Item and Response Design

7

Example #1a: Content – Water Management and 
Antisemitism  

How	concerned	are	you	over	storm	water	management	and	flooding	issues	in	VMA?	

Very concerned 
Concerned 
Neutral 
Unconcerned  
Very unconcerned 

In	the	past	year	has	your	household	experienced	flooding	or	other	water	management	issues?

Yes/No 

Have	you	been	satisfied	with	the	Village's	handling	of	water	management	issues	in	the	Village?	

Very satisfied 
Satisfied 
Neither satisfied or dissatisfied 
Dissatisfied 
Very dissatisfied 
Comment 

Storm Water Management

How	concerned	are	you	over	antisemitism	issues	or	other	religions	bias	incidents	in	VMA?	

Very concerned 
Concerned 
Neutral 
Unconcerned  
Very unconcerned

In	the	past	year	have	you	or	a	family	member	experienced	antisemitism	or	religious	bias	incidents	
in	VMA?

Antisemitism

8

55



12/6/23

5

Example #1b: Content – Elections

Was the 2023 Village election conducted in a fair and open manner?  
Strongly agree 
Agree 
Neither agree or disagree 
Disagree 
Strongly disagree  

Did you get the information you needed to make an informed decision in the 2023 Village election? 
Strongly agree 
Agree 
Neither agree or disagree 
Disagree 
Strongly disagree  

9

Example #1c Content: Ethics
Context and explanation Item Selection

Proposed Questions for Annual Survey - Ethics 

The Village Council adopted an Ethics Committee complaint resolution process for conflicts of interest and 
impartiality violations in 2021. This process applies ONLY to  “statutory” positions  mentioned in the Village 
Charter (Council members, employees, Election Committee, Ethics Committee, and Tree Supervisor). 

32. Are you satisfied with this current complaint resolution process? 
Very satisfied, Satisfied, Neither satisfied or dissatisfied, Dissatisfied, Very dissatisfied
Comment

The Council is considering expanding the 2021 Ethics Committee complaint resolution process for conflicts of 
interest and impartiality violations coverage to ALL committees, temporary positions, and task forces.

33. Do you agree with expanding coverage?
Strongly Agree, Agree, Neither agree or disagree, Disagree, Strongly Disagree
Comment 

Footnote: Council Member Blander reviewed entire survey and recommended some changes to improve 
inter-item variability and overall quality of the survey. Many or most suggestions were adopted.

10

56



12/6/23

6

Example #2: Item “Unpacking” - Building Code

The Village currently allows things in the side setbacks (the area between the house and the side 
boundary), such as swing sets, barbeques, and jungle gyms. Should all things larger than a certain size be 
disallowed in side setbacks?

Comment: Residents have expressed concern specific to existing code enforcement AND 
specifically setbacks enforced for water retention devices. Furthermore, how ”footprint” 
calculations derived. How adequately does this capture these concerns?

11

Example #3 – Item Response consistency

• Items 1 through 14: Likert Agreement Scales
• Strongly agree
• Agree
• neither agree or disagree
• Disagree
• Strongly disagree

• Item 19 (Ethics)
• Yes 
• No
• Not sure

12

57



12/6/23

7

Trends and Observations

13

Village Operations, Meetings, Events, Services
Very Satisfied or 

Satisfied/Strongly Agree or 
Agree (%)

N (Total)

Village Operations, Staff, Council, and Planning
Village operations 82% 166

Contacted the Village Office 74% 165
Contact the Village Council 58% 164

VMA newsletter, Weekly Wrap-up, and email alerts 83% 165
Village website 56% 158

Participate in Village planning and decision-making? 51% 164
Meetings

Community Engagement Committee 72% 26
Ethics Committee Meeting 21% 22

Election Committee Meeting 45% 25
Halloween Party and Parade 90% 70

Events
Candidate Forum 75% 72

Shred Event 80% 29
Independence Day celebration 84% 56
Volunteer Appreciation event 70% 19

Movie Nights 67% 29
Services

Autumn curbside leaf vacuuming 84% 164
Police patrols (10 hours weekly) 41% 165

Planting, maintenance of Village trees in ROW 70% 165
Village support of private tree planting 68% 158

14

58



12/6/23

8

Q18 (Ethics): Do you favor expanding coverage? – Trends

Percent N
Overall

Yes 20% 33
No 48% 78

Not sure 32% 53
Total 100% 164

Recoded
Yes 20% 33

No or Not sure 80% 131
Total 100% 164

Adjusted for not sure and blank
Yes 30% 33
No 70% 78

Total 100% 111
50/50 allocation of not sure

Yes 36% 60
No 64% 105

Comment: Residents at this time are overwhelmingly not in favor and unsure of expansion plans

15

Q18 (Ethics): Do you favor expanding coverage? – Comments

• 54 unique comments: 42 Not in favor, 8 Supportive, 3 Maybe, 1 N/A
• Common themes

Not in favor Supportive Maybe
Unnecessary Good governance Question is confusing
Deterrence to volunteering Hiring concerns More information
Over reach & too bureaucratic Uniformity
Why keeps coming back
Doesn't support the process (Yes to ethics!)
Not all "officials" are the same

16

59



12/6/23

9

Q18 (Ethics): Misunderstanding or misinformation 

• If a CEC member hires a friend as a food vendor for July 4, doesn't vet that friend and that vendor gives
somebody food poisoning, we should be able to file an ethics complaint against the CEC member and that
CEC member should follow the same complaint resolution process.

• This should be a no-brainer. As taxpayers and community members, we deserve Council and committee 
members and staff who agree to avoid conflicts of interest and/or bias in their official acts. I would 
strongly suspect the motives of any volunteer acting in an official capacity that has an issue with such an 
ethics requirement. This should be a mandatory requirement for volunteer service to the community.

CEC do not hire or execute contracts

All volunteers are obligated to complete a COI as 
well as take an oath

17

Building Code

Building Code

Very Satisfied or 
Satisfied/Strongly Agree 

or Agree (%)
N (Total)

Building height be restricted along other sides of the building 56% 163
Village impose a maximum length on new buildings 48% 156

All things larger than a certain size be disallowed in side setbacks (swing 
sets, barbeques, and jungle gyms) 36% 159

Satisfied with construction activity restrictions 66% 160
Total 52% 160

Comment: Opportunity to engage residents on a topic with is important, timely, and priority.

18

60



12/6/23

10

Future considerations
Sampling

• Being clear about what is our sampling frame?
• Who are we missing and how to increase response rate.

Survey Design
• Be more inclusive and transparent on process and engagement.
• To improve the overall quality of the survey consider “unloading” of items as well as consistency of 

item responses to improve the richness and interpretation of the data collected
Recommendations

1. Codify an administrative process in designing the annual survey that engages a more
transparent process that encourages all residents, committee members, and council members 
to provide inputs and suggestions.

2. Pause on ANY votes on Ethics in 2023 to address resident concerns, misunderstandings, and 
provide additional information. Consider a referendum vote during the next election. 

3. Stand-up a temporary resident building code taskforce or working group to specifically
address new construction, enforcement of existing code, and calculations of ”footprints”.

4. Host a stand alone Winter listening session (Tues Dec 12th) in follow-up to survey and FY 
midpoint.

19

Unused slides

20

61



12/6/23

11

What Pew Research Center and Rand Corp have to say….
• The most important part of the survey process is the creation of questions that 

accurately measure the opinions and experiences.
• The survey research will be wasted if the information gathered is built on a shaky 

foundation of ambiguous or biased questions.
• Questionnaire design is a multistage process that requires attention to many details at 

once.
• One may conduct pilot tests or focus groups in the early stages of questionnaire 

development in order to better understand how people think about an issue or
comprehend a question.

• Pretesting a survey is an essential step in the questionnaire design process to evaluate 
how people respond to the overall questionnaire and specific questions, especially when 
questions are being introduced for the first time.

• Questionnaire development is a collaborative and iterative process where staff meet to 
discuss drafts of the questionnaire several times over the course of its development. We 
frequently test new survey questions ahead of time….

21

62



Election Committee Report for the November 2023 Council Meeting 

The 2024 VMA Election Committee held its third and fourth meetings on November 1 and 13, 
2023, by Zoom. The Committee is making good progress to consolidate the five 2023 election 
documents into a single overall 2024 ordinance. We are using the 2023 election procedures as the 
basis for our work and replacing the 2023 dates with the generic provisions, to make the election 
procedures a standing, long-term ordinance so the Council and the Committee will not have to 
develop a new election ordinance every year. We will have the updated overall ordinance ready to 
present to the Council on schedule, before the next Council meeting on December 14.  

The Committee has been careful to make sure that the process is transparent and that all the 
information is accessible. We’ve welcomed the residents’ participation at each meeting, provided 
the mark-ups of the documents in the public packets before the meetings, and put the recordings 
and the detailed minutes on the VMA website. The Committee voted section by section to approve 
the working draft of the ordinance at our meeting on November 13. We will vote on the final, 
complete document shortly after Thanksgiving, and will be glad to answer any questions the 
Council may have in the meantime. 

The election ordinance should be like a cookbook from now on:  Once VMA has all the standard 
procedures in one place, the future Election Committees can just set the election dates and carry 
out the provisions.   

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION:  The Committee has unanimously voted to ask the Council to 
approve a short-term contractor to assist with the task of verifying the voter roll for 2024. The 
proposed RFP and specifications are in the packet for this Council meeting.  

We appreciate the VMA attorney’s help in preparing the RFP. As Ron Bolt said in the language he 
added, VMA needs to be very thorough about verifying the 2024 voter roll because of the Council’s 
adoption of a new definition of “qualified voters” and the importance of having accurate, up-to-
date voter rolls for mail-vote elections.  

Please approve the RFP so the Village Manager can post the announcement as soon as possible.  
To keep the election cycle on schedule, the voter roll verification process has to begin in about six 
weeks. 

Respectfully submitted by the chair of the 2024 Election Committee, for attachment to the 
November 16, 2023, Council meeting minutes posted on the Village website. 

63



64



From: Michael Silliman, Village Manager 
To: Village Council  
Subject: Village Manager’s Report   
Date: 12-14-23 

Administration: 
- The Village office is closed Monday, December 25th and we may close early Friday,

December 22nd and Friday December 29th. Otherwise, the Village office is open
throughout the month.

- I will be on my annual vacation January 3rd to 12th.
- We are finalizing the contract with Compost Crew to provide a free composting service

to everyone who wants it. This will launch January 1st.
-  

Maintenance: 
- We have already seen snow this year, and I have started building a list of residents that

are unable to shovel their public sidewalk. I will provide this list to Rolling Acres prior to
any snow event so that they can shovel these areas. Please let me know if you are
unable to shovel your sidewalk.

- Leaf vacuuming happens approximately every other week through December. They will
return next Monday, and I may have Rolling Acres return in the spring to clean the
streets one more time.

- We have plenty of leaf bags, so please come by the office and pick them up if you need
them.

Special Projects: 
- We have signed up five residents for Chevy Chase at Home memberships so far.
- I have three engineering firms preparing estimates for the designing and permitting

phases of the Brookville Road sidewalk project. This will include working with residents
to address any concerns or issues.

- By my last count, we planted 31 trees this fall. Thanks to all the residents who requested
native trees. If you would like to have a private tree planted in your yard next year, just
let me know and I’ll add you to the list.

- The Holiday Fund is now open. There is a lock box in the Village office to receive checks.
We are unable to receive cash, electronic payments, or credit cards currently.

Buildings: 
- A variance request was approved by the Council for 3412 Taylor. We’re in the process of

issuing permits.
- We have asked Montgomery County to inspect the bio retention planted boxes at 3417

and 3419 Cummings to ensure they are built to design specifications.
- 3415 Cummings is preparing to apply for demo and building permits.
- We are preparing to close out permits for projects at 3500 Raymond, 3409 Thornapple,

3508 Bradley, and 151 Quincy.

65



 SCHEDULE FOR THE 2024 VMA ELECTION 

The VMA Election Committee is pleased to present the Council with the proposed schedule for the 2024 
Village Council election.  

Election Day will be Tuesday, May 7, 2024. The timetable for the election is as follows: 

February 22:   The Committee issues the official public notice of the opening of the nomination period 
(75 days before Election Day). 

March 23: Candidate filing deadline (45 days before Election Day). 

April 6: Deadline for VMA to mail the official VMA election information packet to each household 
(14 days after the candidate filing date). 

April 7: Deadline for the Committee to email the updated, verified VMA voter roll to the mail-vote 
election contractor, to prepare the ballot packets. 

April 23/24:   VMA election forum (the Committee will confirm the candidates’ availability for the forum 
when they initially file as candidates, the month before). 

April 24/25: The contractor mails the ballot packets to the voters the day after the forum. 

May 7: Election Day. Last day to add new voters. The Committee supervises the mail-vote drop-box 
for the sealed ballot envelopes, in front of the Village Office. 

May 14: Last day for voters to contact the Committee to request replacement ballots. 

May 21/22: Due date for receipt of the ballot envelopes, and the date for the vote counting session  
(the Committee will confirm the contractor’s availability). If there are curable non-
conforming ballot envelopes, the Committee will allow voters 5 business days to cure the 
envelopes, then close the election. The Committee will review the contractor’s final Count 
of Ballot Report, and then vote to certify and announce the official election results.  

66



Explanation of the Proposed 2024 Election Ordinance 

The 2024 VMA Election Committee prepared this proposed election ordinance based on the election rules and 
procedures approved by the Council for the 2023 election. We kept the 2023 election structure, procedures, 
and timing, which worked well. We removed the references to last year’s specific dates and made the 
provisions into a standard ordinance.  

Election procedures don’t normally change from year to year. Future Election Committees should be able to 
just submit the schedule for that year’s election to the Council for approval, and then carry out the regular 
procedures in the ordinance. 

There were five separate election documents in 2023:  the main rules and procedures, the voter roll 
verification procedure, the instructions for the mail-vote contractor, the vote counting procedure, and the 
provisions for the election forum. We consolidated all five into a single organized election ordinance. This 
makes the election process more workable for the Committee and makes the provisions more accessible for 
any voters who might want to see VMA’s regulations. By organizing all the procedures in one place, we were 
able to shorten the document, too. Instead of five sets of procedures totaling about 20 pages in 2023, we now 
have a unified ordinance that includes all the regulations in about 12 and a half pages.  

We incorporated the new VMA Charter definition of “qualified voters” that the Council adopted, as we were 
required to do, and updated the process for verifying the voter roll. In keeping with the Charter, we also 
clarified the operational boundary that separates the Council and staff from the Committee’s day-to-day 
election management process. That protects fair elections, and keeps the Village staff from getting saddled 
with the election work on top of their regular workload. The electoral “firewall” protects the VMA staff from 
the potential for election-related conflicts of interest.  

To protect voting rights, we reviewed the two provisions that prevented some VMA voters from having their 
ballots counted in previous years:  We clarified the ballot curing section, and remedied the discrepancy 
between the vote counting date and the due date for ballot receipt, so future voters will not be unnecessarily 
disqualified.  

The 2024 Election Committee has voted unanimously to approve these election procedures. We recommend 
that the Council standardize the Village election process by adopting the 2024 document as a stable, long-term 
Election Ordinance.    

Respectfully submitted by the VMA Election Committee, December 12, 2023 

67



Approved by the 2024 Election Committee at its public meeting on December 11, 2023 

Based on the 2023 Election Rules and Procedures adopted by the Council on January 19, 2023 

VMA ELECTION ORDINANCE 

I. Purpose

The purpose of this Ordinance is to provide for fair and independent elections in the Village of Martin’s 
Additions and to ensure that all qualified voters are able to freely exercise their right to vote. 

II. The Village Council Election Process

The Village of Martin’s Additions (“VMA") Charter provides for a five-member elected Village Council 
(“Council"). Per Charter Section 602, Council members are elected to terms of two years. The number of seats 
open on the Council alternates between two and three seats every other year. Vacancies are filled per Section 
408. Charter Section 301 defines the residents who are qualified to vote.

To maintain independent, impartial elections, the Charter requires that the VMA elections be managed by the 
Election Committee, not by the Council or Village staff. Accordingly, the Council annually appoints an Election 
Committee (“Committee”) to manage the elections in accordance with the Village Charter and the ordinances 
and regulations adopted by the Council. The Committee shall consist of no fewer than five “qualified voter” 
volunteers appointed by the Council. The Council may appoint additional qualified voters as short-term 
assistant Election Committee members, as needed, at the request of the Committee. Committee members 
complete an Oath of Office and a conflicts of interest disclosure statement, as provided by the Village. The 
Committee shall issue the election notices; manage, verify, and certify the voter roll; accept nominations and 
verify candidate eligibility; conduct the public election forum; prepare and authorize the ballots; manage and 
direct the coordination of the election process with the election service contractor; conduct the vote counting; 
certify the election results; and otherwise manage the annual elections. 

III. General Provisions

1. The Election Committee shall set the date of Election Day between May 1 and May 15 each year, on a
date determined from year to year in accordance with Section 602 of the Charter.

2. The Committee shall, no less than six months before Election Day, submit the proposed Schedule for
the election cycle to the Council for approval, showing the specific date for Election Day, the
nomination period, candidate filing date, election forum date, ballot mailing date, and the due date
for ballot receipt and vote counting.

3. Each year the Committee shall instruct the Village staff to publish the official notices of the election
and forum and the details of the election cycle for that year in the Village newsletter, in the Village
election information packet that is mailed to the Village households, on the Village website, and via
the Village’s email communication channels. The VMA staff shall post the Committee’s election
announcements throughout the election cycle.

4. No later than seventy-five (75) days prior to Election Day, the Committee shall open the nomination
period by public notice and request that declarations of candidacy and nominations of candidates be

68



submitted in writing to the Committee. Any qualified voter may declare their candidacy or be 
nominated by another qualified voter. 

5. To be placed on the ballot, no later than forty-five (45) days prior to Election Day each candidate shall
submit (a) a statement of interest and qualifications and (b) a conflicts of interest disclosure statement
in a form specified by the Village, by email to the Election Committee.

6. The Committee shall publish and mail the official Village election information packet to all VMA
households no later than two (2) weeks after the candidate filing date, with the candidates’ written
statements of interest, the official election and forum notices, and general voting instructions.

7. The Committee shall establish a venue, format, date, and time for an election forum for residents to
hear from the candidates and ask questions. The forum shall be moderated by the Committee in
accordance with the Forum Procedure specified herein.

8. Pursuant to the Charter and this Ordinance, each qualified voter may cast a mail-in ballot provided by
the Committee in accordance with the schedule publicly announced by the Committee.

9. Blank lines shall be placed on the ballot for the purpose of adding write-in candidates at the time of
the election. A successful write-in candidate shall be required to submit a conflicts of interest
disclosure statement no later than seven (7) business days following the election.

10. In the event that two or more candidates receive the same number of votes where only one can be
elected, the Committee shall initiate a runoff election within two weeks after the announcement of
the election results. Runoff elections shall be held by mail. If the margin between the winning and
losing candidates is fewer than ten (10) votes, a losing candidate may request a recount by notifying
the Committee no later than three (3) calendar days after the election results are announced.

11. VMA elections may include referendums. Referendum questions may be placed on the ballot by the
Council or by a community petition signed by no fewer than 100 qualified voters, and shall be
submitted to the Election Committee in final written form no later than March 15 each year.

IV. Qualified Voters: Who Can Vote?

Pursuant to Charter Section 301, a “qualified voter” is any natural person whose residence is in Martin’s 
Additions and who is eighteen years of age or over, as of Election Day. As used in the Charter, “residence” 
means the location deemed the voter’s primary residence (or “permanent abode” according to case law) and 
single domicile in the United States for voting purposes, and where the voter intends to return after a 
temporary residence elsewhere. The address shown on the resident’s driver’s license or used for other official 
purposes is generally considered the person’s primary residence. 

Students aged 18 or older who reside elsewhere during the school year but who maintain their primary 
residence in Martin’s Additions are deemed residents and are entitled to vote in the Village Council election. 
Renters and caregivers who reside in Martin’s Additions are eligible to vote if VMA is their primary residence. 

Voters in Martin’s Additions need not be registered to vote in Montgomery County or in the State of 
Maryland and need not be U.S. citizens. 

Property ownership does not confer voting rights in VMA. However, property owners who are temporarily 
residing elsewhere for work or other reasons may maintain their residential right to vote in the next annual 
Village election by providing the Election Committee with a completed federal FPCA standard form 76, or a 

69



signed and dated declaration that states (a) that VMA is their primary residence and sole U.S. residence for 
voting purposes and (b) that they intend to return to VMA. Non-resident property owners may submit such 
signed forms or declarations annually for a maximum of seven (7) consecutive years. 

Residents who are temporarily deployed on military service in other locations retain their residential right to 
vote in Martin’s Additions, and can receive a ballot by providing the Election Committee with a completed 
federal FPCA standard form 76, or a signed and dated declaration that states (a) that VMA is their primary 
residence and sole U.S. residence for voting purposes and (b) that they intend to return to VMA. 

V. Village Voter Roll

The Committee shall verify and certify the annual voter roll in accordance with the Voter Roll Verification 
Procedure in Appendix A, which is hereby attached to and made an integral part of this Election Ordinance. 
The Committee shall utilize the most recent electronically available Village resident contact information, the 
County voter roll, and other appropriate sources to verify the names and addresses of the qualified voters for 
each annual election. 

Eligible voters who are not on the VMA or County voter roll may contact the Committee to request to be 
added to the VMA voter roll up until 8 PM on Election Day. To be eligible to receive a mail ballot, potential 
VMA voters who are not on the County voter roll must sign a short Election Committee form to confirm that 
VMA is the voter’s primary residence, and show a driver’s license or other documentation acceptable to the 
Committee in its sole discretion, to confirm the voter’s name, date of birth, and current address in Martin’s 
Additions. 

The Committee is responsible for adding eligible voters, and is likewise responsible for removing from the 
voter roll the names of those who are no longer qualified voters, in accordance with the process specified in 
the Voter Roll Verification Procedure. The Committee shall confirm that the verified voter roll is used in 
operating the election, and shall certify the final official voter roll for that year after the Committee closes the 
voter roll on Election Day. 

VI. Procedure for Voting

VMA’s elections shall be held entirely by mail. The Committee shall utilize the services of a mail-vote election 
contractor. There shall be no in-person voting. To protect election security, the VMA election contractor shall 
mail the ballots directly to the voters. Voters will mail their completed ballots back to the election contractor 
in the postage-paid envelopes issued by the contractor. To ensure that their ballot will be counted, voters 
must sign the brief affidavit form on the back of the official ballot return envelope. 

On Election Day, the Committee shall also provide an opportunity for voters to drop off completed ballot 
envelopes in a secure, accessible mail-vote drop-box directly supervised by the Committee. Voters may come 
to the Committee table in front of the Village Office to deposit their sealed ballot envelopes, containing a 
voted ballot and bearing a completed affidavit, in the Election Committee mail-vote drop-box between the 
hours of 5:00 PM and 8:00 PM on Election Day. 

Promptly after 8:00 PM, the Election Committee shall open the drop-box, count and record the number of 
ballot return envelopes in the box, and ensure a secure Committee chain-of-custody procedure to promptly 
convey those completed ballot envelopes directly to the mail-vote contractor. VMA Council members, staff, 
and other unauthorized persons are not permitted to have access to the ballot envelopes. The election 
contractor shall securely hold all ballot envelopes received until the date for vote counting. 

The Committee shall instruct the contractor to mail the ballot packets to the voters the day after the Election 
Forum. The contractor shall mail the packet via first class U.S. post or other secure tracked delivery system to 

70



each voter listed on the VMA voter roll at their address of record. Each packet shall include (a) a ballot, (b) the 
voting instructions prepared by the Committee in consultation with the election contractor, (c) a voting 
privacy envelope, and (d) a postage-paid ballot return envelope marked with the ballot security control 
number assigned to that voter. 

Traditional absentee ballots will not be necessary, because every person on VMA’s voting roll will automatically 
receive a ballot packet by mail. The Committee will work with the election contractor to identify the projected 
dates when ballots will begin arriving and shall provide notice to the Village. 

If voters are planning not to be at their VMA address during the voting process, they may elect to receive a 
ballot by mail at a different location by so informing the Committee no later than 8:00 PM on Election Day. 
No one may vote two ballots at two different addresses. 

Voters may also request early ballots by notifying the Committee if they will be out of the country or otherwise 
unable to receive a ballot by mail during the regular voting period. The Committee shall instruct the contractor 
to mail early ballots to such voters. 

Voters whose ballots have been lost, damaged, spoiled, or for any other reason cannot be voted may request 
a replacement ballot by contacting the Committee no later than seven (7) days after Election Day. On receipt 
of such requests, the Committee shall instruct the contractor to cancel the previous ballot sent to that voter 
and mail the replacement ballot. The contractor must void the original ballot before a second ballot is issued 
to a voter. 

All completed ballot envelopes must be received by the mail-vote contractor no later than 5:00 PM on the 
day of the vote counting session. The Election Committee shall post public reminders for all qualified voters to 
return ballots by mail sufficiently early to ensure that their ballot envelopes arrive by the vote counting date. 

VII. Nominations and Candidate Filing Process

The Committee shall issue a public call for candidates no less than seventy-five (75) days prior to Election Day. 
Any qualified voter may run for office. Qualified voters may nominate themselves or be nominated by 
another resident, in writing. Nominations may be made only by qualified voters; anonymous nominations are 
not permitted. Qualified voters who nominate themselves must submit an affirmative written statement or 
email stating that they wish to run for office. Qualified voters who nominate candidates other than 
themselves must include an email or signed written statement from the proposed candidate expressing their 
consent to be nominated, and should make the nomination early enough to ensure that the nominee has 
time to prepare the candidate filing materials before the filing deadline. 

To be placed on the official ballot, each candidate shall submit their filing materials to the Election Committee 
by email no later than forty-five (45) days before Election Day. Submissions are due by 6:00 PM on the filing 
date; a thirty-minute grace period will be allowed for email submissions to arrive in the Committee’s email 
inbox. The required candidate filing materials are (a) a candidate statement of interest of up to approximately 
1000 words, including their qualifications as well as any other information they deem relevant, and (b) a 
signed and completed conflicts of interest disclosure statement. The Election Committee shall specify the 
form of both documents when the nomination period opens. The Committee may specify standard formatting 
for the candidate statements and any standard questions to which all candidates are requested to respond. 

The Committee shall maintain a record of the date and time when nominations and candidate filing materials 
are received, and shall promptly review the submissions. The Committee shall not edit the content of any 
candidate’s statement; the candidate statements of interest and qualifications must be published as 
submitted. If a candidate’s conflicts of interest form is incomplete, the Committee shall notify the candidate 
by email, and the candidate shall have 24 hours to correct the problem. 

71



VIII. Announcement of Candidates

The Committee shall promptly notify the Village of the candidates for office by email announcement, by 
posting on the Village website, and in the Village newsletter and the official election information packet that 
is mailed to all VMA households. The information will also be available for review in the Village Office 
throughout the election period. The Committee shall provide election updates and additional Information in 
the Village newsletters, and by email via the Village public communication channels, and may also distribute 
information in printed flyers or by other means. 

IX. Election Forum

The Committee shall host an Election Forum between April 15 and April 30 each year, no less than ten (10) 
business days before Election Day on a date agreed upon by the Committee and candidates, to allow qualified 
voters and other residents to hear from candidates and ask the candidates questions. The Committee shall 
ensure that the forum is impartial, and shall conduct the forum in accordance with the Forum Procedure in 
Appendix B, which is hereby attached to and made an integral part of this Election Ordinance. The Committee 
shall ensure that the official Village election information packet containing the candidates’ statements of 
interest is mailed to the residents in time to be received before the forum. 

X. Instructions for the Mail-vote Election Service Contractor

The Village Manager issues and administers the contract, at the direction of the Committee. The Election 
Committee manages the election process. The mail-vote service contractor reports to the Committee. The 
Committee shall keep the Village Manager fully informed. 

Election schedule: The Committee shall notify the contractor of the dates for Election Day and the VMA 
election forum, and shall determine the date for the vote counting session in consultation with the contractor. 
The vote counting shall take place no less than two weeks after Election Day. 

Mailing date for the ballot packets and final received-by date for the completed ballots: The contractor shall 
mail the ballot packets to the voters on the Committee’s instructions, the day after the VMA election forum 
in late April. The ballot receipt deadline is 5 PM on the day of the vote counting. 

Voter roll: The Election Committee shall send the verified voter roll to the mail-vote contractor in early April. 
Voter roll changes: Pursuant to this Ordinance, the Committee may add or remove voters until 8 PM on 
Election Day. The Committee shall instruct the contractor in writing, by email, to add new voters as 
warranted, or to void a voter’s ballot security number if the Committee determines that a ballot was sent to 
someone who is no longer a qualified voter. 

Approval of ballot packet: The contractor shall provide the draft ballot packet (including the voting 
instructions, ballot format, and envelopes) to the Committee for review at least two weeks before the planned 
general mailing date. The Committee shall check the content, format, clarity and accuracy of the draft 
documents and vote to approve the packet before authorizing the contractor to send it to the voters. 

Specifications for the ballot packet and equipment on Election Day: The contractor shall: 
a. Rotate the candidates’ names on the ballot format to prevent positional bias.
b. Include the blank lines on the ballot for the write-in votes.
c. Provide postage-paid ballot return envelopes, and the inner envelopes to protect voting privacy.

72



d. Assign a random 6-digit security control number to each voter, and print that number on the voter’s
ballot return envelope.

e. Print the affidavit/affirmation form on the back of the return envelopes.
f. Put tracking codes on both the incoming ballot packets and the return ballot envelopes.
g. Send a test mailing to the Committee members before the general mailing to the Village, and correct

any problems at the direction of the Committee.
h. Provide a small secure mail-vote drop-box on site in Martin’s Additions on the afternoon and

evening of Election Day for the completed ballot return envelopes, and provide a secure means
to promptly convey those completed ballot return envelopes to the contractor’s location for the
subsequent vote counting session. The Election Committee shall supervise the drop-box to
ensure its security.

Early ballots: The Committee may instruct the contractor to mail early ballot packets to voters who will be out 
of the country or otherwise unable to receive mail during the general mailing to the Village. 

Replacement ballots: The Committee may instruct the contractor to issue replacement ballots up to seven 
(7) days after Election Day. The contractor shall cancel the original assigned ballot security control number to
void the original ballot before sending a voter a replacement ballot with a new control number.

Ballot records: The Committee shall send all ballot instructions to the election service contractor in writing, 
via email. The contractor cannot issue ballots without the Committee’s written instructions. The contractor 
and the Committee shall each keep a record of all ballots issued, all ballots voided, all replacement ballots 
sent, and all emails received, to maintain a complete record that can be audited and verified. 

XI. Vote Counting Procedure

1. The Committee and contractor shall schedule the vote counting session to be held no less than two
weeks after Election Day, after 5 PM on the designated date. The contractor shall make arrangements
with the Martin’s Additions Village Manager to enable the Committee, the candidates and/or their
representatives, and residents to view the vote counting process by Zoom or other remote means,
and shall record the vote counting session.

2. The contractor shall include all ballot return envelopes that are received by 5 PM on the date of the
vote counting. Prior to the start of the vote counting, the contractor shall inform the Committee of
the total number of ballot envelopes received and the number that are still in postal transit as of 5 PM
on that date.

3. On the Committee’s instructions, the contractor shall begin the vote counting session by presenting
any non-conforming envelopes for Committee adjudication. A return envelope that is unsealed, was
not issued by the contractor, does not have a valid control number, or does not have a signed
affidavit, is non-conforming. If voters within the same household have switched their return
envelopes, those envelopes are valid. The contractor shall set aside, unopened, any ballot return
envelopes the Committee determines to be non-conforming. The Committee shall notify those
individual voters by email, telephone, or in person within 24 hours after the initial vote counting
session, to give them a chance to “cure” those envelopes. Voters shall have five (5) business days to
cure their ballot envelopes.

4. On the Committee’s instructions, continuing the vote counting session, the contractor shall:
a. Open the valid envelopes and tally the votes by machine count.
b. Present any non-machine-readable ballots for Committee adjudication, to complete the initial

vote count.

73



c. Provide the Committee with the preliminary tally of the votes for each listed candidate, the name
and number of votes for each write-in candidate, the number of envelopes, ballots and/or votes
that were disqualified, and the reasons for the disqualifications.

d. Work with the Committee to resolve any questions about the initial vote count.

5. Candidates or their designated representative(s) — only one per candidate — may observe the
tallying, review, and adjudication process, and may raise objections during the process. The candidate
or designated representative must identify the challenge at the time of vote counting. Other residents
and qualified voters may also observe the process, but they may not raise objections, participate in, or
disrupt the counting of the ballots.

6. If candidates or their representatives raise objections during the envelope adjudication or ballot review
process, the Committee shall resolve such objections by Committee vote during the session and
instruct the contractor to include or set aside the envelope, or include or disqualify the ballot or vote,
accordingly.

7. If a voter cures a non-conforming ballot envelope, the Committee shall instruct the contractor by email
to open that envelope and include those votes in the final tally. The Committee shall notify the
contractor about any cured ballot envelopes no later than six (6) business days after the initial vote
counting session.

8. At the conclusion of the ballot-curing process, the contractor shall within 24 hours provide the
Committee with the contractor’s complete certified Official Count of Ballot Report on all votes received,
including the number of votes for each listed candidate, the name and number of votes for each write- 
in candidate, the total number of ballot envelopes that were received, the number of envelopes, ballots
and/or votes that were disqualified, and the reasons for the disqualifications. After reviewing the
contractor’s Count of Ballot Report, the Committee shall close the election. The Committee shall vote
to officially certify the election and shall promptly provide a complete written report of the election
results to the Council, the candidates, and the residents of Martin’s Additions, by email via the Village
public communication channels.

9. The Election Committee may specify additional instructions for the contractor as necessary to ensure a
fair, inclusive, and accurate election, consistent with the provisions of this Ordinance.

10. The contractor shall securely return all ballots, envelopes, and other election materials to the Martin’s
Additions Village Office by mail or courier.

XII. Election Interference

The Committee shall document and promptly report to the Council any interference with the election process. 
The Council shall take action to prohibit any person or organization from interfering with the election process, 
including any interference with the Election Committee officials in the performance of their official duties or 
interference with persons acting under the instructions of the Committee in the performance of those 
official election duties. 

XIII. Electioneering

1. Residents may distribute candidates’ information to Village residents, provided that such distribution
complies with applicable laws, including Sections 7-208 and 9-106 of the Village Code and the United
States postal service regulations (for example, no unstamped non-postal material may be placed in
residents’ mailboxes).

74



2. All candidates’ brochures and election materials must prominently state that they have been paid for
by, or on behalf of, the candidates.

3. Use of the Village logo and/or letterhead on election campaign materials is prohibited. Candidates’
materials shall not imply, suggest, or give the impression of any official endorsement by the Village of
Martin’s Additions.

4. Candidates’ campaigns may give residents token gifts that display candidate information, provided
that such gifts do not exceed $1 in fair market value.

5. On Election Day, the Committee shall set and enforce a reasonable “No Electioneering Zone” around
the election table where voters may place their ballot envelopes in the Election Committee ballot
drop-box. That zone shall prohibit electioneering within a 50 foot radius of the election table. Sound
amplification systems such as bullhorns will not be permitted.

XIV. Election Committee Meetings and Public Comments

All Election Committee meetings shall comply with the Open Meetings Act. VMA elections are voter-friendly, 
and all VMA election procedures are public documents, available on request. The Committee shall provide 
public mark-ups to show proposed regulatory changes and shall allow a reasonable opportunity for public 
comments on each meeting agenda item before the Committee makes its decisions. Voters have the right to 
receive timely, accurate election information and provide public comments about the VMA election rules and 
regulations. 

XV. Election Records

All election records, including nominations, candidate statements, ballots, envelopes, and all materials 
pertaining to voter rolls and the voting process, shall be securely stored at the Village Office, in accordance 
with the Village’s Document Retention Schedule. 

APPENDIX A: VOTER ROLL VERIFICATION PROCEDURE 

The Election Committee shall implement this procedure to verify the Village residents who are “qualified 
voters” as defined by the Charter and this Ordinance. The Committee shall update and certify the voter roll for 
each annual Village Council election, consistent with Maryland Code, Elections Article, Section 3-403, and the 
Village Charter and Code of Ordinances. The VMA voter roll is an official government document. The 
Committee must have a clear, auditable factual basis for its decisions about who receives a ballot. 

The Election Committee shall send all instructions about the VMA voter roll to the mail-vote contractor in 
writing (by email), to provide a documented public record. The mail-vote contractor sends the ballots directly 
to the qualified voters. 

The VMA staff assists the Committee by posting the Committee’s notices and communications to residents, 
hiring election service contractors, and providing the standard electronic government data: (1) the current 
Village Office List of VMA residents; (2) the certified VMA voter rolls from prior years; and (3) the current 
County voter roll for the addresses in Martin’s Additions. The VMA staff does not verify the voters, make 
decisions about who shall receive a ballot, or manage the election process; the Village staff members are 
employees of the Council, including the incumbent candidates, which can create a potential conflict of 
interest. The Election Committee is responsible for the voter roll and the election process. 

75



The Committee shall exercise due diligence to maintain the accuracy of the voter roll, and authorize the 
contractor to send ballots to all qualified voters on the VMA voter roll. The Committee shall not remove 
potential voters from the VMA voter roll without due process, which includes (1) a documented factual basis 
for the decision, (2) written notification, and (3) a reasonable procedure for the individual to challenge the 
decision if the person wishes to do so. 

A. Voter Eligibility

The Committee shall define voter eligibility in accordance with the provisions specified in Section 301 of the 
Village Charter and Section IV of the Ordinance. 

B. Timing

The Committee shall approve the verified updated voter roll by a Committee vote and submit it electronically 
to the designated mail-vote contractor no later than April 7 each year to allow time for the printing and 
mailing of ballots to the qualified voters. 

C. Voter Roll Verification Process

1. The Committee may utilize the services of a temporary contractor to assist in the voter roll verification
process.

2. Acknowledging that there is no single, perfect way to update and verify a voter roll, the Committee shall
update the VMA voter roll, beginning in January each year, by using the following procedures and consulting
other sources of relevant information the Committee deems appropriate:

a. Compare the prior year’s VMA voter roll with the VMA Office List of current residents and
notifications of move-ins/move-outs in the Village, and resolve discrepancies by verifying current
residency as defined in the Village Charter, by applying the steps below.

b. Compare the County voter roll for VMA’s addresses, as provided to the Committee by the VMA
Office, with the prior year’s VMA voter roll, and resolve discrepancies by verifying current residency as
defined in the Village Charter, by applying the steps below.

c. Conduct a check of relevant property records and other public records as necessary to resolve
questions of current residency and property ownership.

d. Conduct an inquiry in person or in writing with the occupants of any given property to resolve
questions of residency.

e. Send an annual notice to each voter by first-class U.S. mail and use the returned mail to help identify
persons who may no longer be current residents.

f. Distribute information to all VMA households regarding the procedure to sign up to vote in VMA, and
inform residents and qualified voters that they should contact the Committee if they have a question
relating to their status on the voter roll, or if they or other members of their household have undergone
a change in status affecting their eligibility to vote in VMA.

g. Check the working draft of the VMA voter roll to delete duplicate entries.

3. Based upon the review conducted in Section C.2. above, the Committee shall identify any names and
addresses for which (a) owners or residents cannot be verified; (b) conflicting information has been identified
during the review of the voter roll, the Village Office List of residents, or County voter records; or (c) issues
have been identified by the Village Manager with respect to the current status of an address.

76



4. The Election Committee shall then vote to either (a) begin a further review of any name and address
identified as having an outstanding issue or (b) decline to conduct further review and leave the status
unchanged. Where the Election Committee votes to continue review, the review process is as follows:

a. The Election Committee shall use the most recent contact information from the Village Office to
contact the potential voter by email or telephone to communicate the issue that has arisen as to voter
eligibility and to gather additional information. If there is no response within ten (10) calendar days, the
Committee shall send a written notification via U.S. mail to the potential voter, to say that a question has
arisen related to their eligibility and request that the individual contact the Committee to resolve the
question. The person shall have ten (10) days to respond to the written notification, to provide additional
information to the Committee.

b. If the issue concerns a person who is not on the VMA or County voter roll and the additional
information confirms that the individual is eligible to vote and would like to be included on the VMA voter
roll, the Committee shall add the person to the voter roll upon receiving a written request from the
individual that includes the documentation specified in section E.2. below.

c. If the issue concerns a previously qualified voter who is already listed on the VMA voter roll, and the
additional information confirms that the individual remains eligible to vote, the Committee will add
notes to the voter roll detailing the steps taken to confirm eligibility.

d. If the issue relates to a previously qualified voter and the additional information demonstrates that
the person is no longer eligible to vote in the Village Election, the Committee shall take the following
action:

i) If the person does not appear on the County voter roll, the Committee shall remove the person
from the VMA voter roll upon receiving written confirmation from the person verifying that they are no
longer an eligible voter in VMA, or documentation from public records that the individual is no longer a 
qualified voter in VMA.

ii) If the person appears on the County voter roll, and the Committee confirms that the person is no
longer an eligible voter in VMA, the Committee shall notify the Village Manager, who shall inform the
County Board of Elections. When the County notifies VMA that the person has been removed from the
County voter list for VMA, the Election Committee shall remove the person from the VMA voter roll. If
it is not possible for the ineligible individual to be removed from the VMA voter roll prior to Election
Day, the Committee shall vote to designate the individual as “Not Qualified.”

e. If there is no response to the Committee’s outreach efforts within 30 days after the date of the
Committee’s initial written notification regarding the questions about eligibility, the Committee may vote
to declare the individual “Not Qualified” and remove them from the list of qualified voters. Individuals
deemed “Not Qualified” will not be mailed ballots nor included on the version of the voter roll submitted
to the election service contractor.

f. Any voter removed from the VMA voter roll or designated “Not Qualified” shall be notified of that
decision, in writing, by the Election Committee. The Committee shall mail the notice to the last known
address of the voter, and include information describing the challenge process set forth below.

D. Transmitting the Voter Roll to the Contractor

Upon conclusion of the process delineated in Section C, the Committee shall vote to approve and send the 
updated, verified voter roll to the election contractor. The Committee shall duly mark the copy of the verified 
voter roll designated by the Committee for transmission to the election contractor, record the time and date 
of its approval and transmission, and confirm that the verified voter roll is used in operating the election. 

77



If, following the transmission of the voter roll to the election contractor, (1) an individual identifies that they 
are no longer a qualified voter or requests to be taken off of the voter roll, or (2) the Committee receives 
documentation from public records that a person is not a qualified voter (e.g., a County death record), the 
Committee shall instruct the election contractor to cancel the ballot sent to that individual. 

E. Adding to the Voter Roll

1. Eligible voters may contact the Committee to request to be added to the VMA voter roll up until
8:00 PM on Election Day.

2. Voters who are not on the County voter roll and are seeking to be added to the VMA voter roll must
sign a short Election Committee form to confirm that VMA is the voter’s primary residence, and show a
driver’s license, a recent utility bill, or other documentation acceptable to the Committee in its sole
discretion, to confirm the voter’s name, date of birth, and current Martin’s Additions address.

3. If a new voter provides the required documentation after the transmission of the voter roll to the
contractor, the Committee shall provide written instructions by email directing the election contractor to
send a ballot to the new voter in time for that ballot to be voted and returned prior to the deadline for
ballot receipt.

F. Challenges to Removal from the Voter Roll

1. Whenever any voter is removed for any reason from the VMA voter roll or declared “Not Qualified,”
the Committee shall send a written notice of the action and the reason for the action to the last known
address of the voter. Individuals may challenge their removal or designation as “Not Qualified” by
notifying the Committee via its email inbox, or by certified mail addressed to the Election Committee at
the Village Office, within 30 days of the date of the notice.

2. This challenge may only be brought by the individual whose eligibility is at issue or their legally
designated representative. At the time of the challenge, the challenging party shall present evidence to
the Committee as to why a decision removing them from the VMA voter roll or declaring them to be “Not
Qualified” is improper, inaccurate, or otherwise in need of reconsideration.

3. Based on the totality of the evidence, including the applicable public records, the Committee shall
vote to determine whether the individual should be restored to the voter roll, and shall provide written
notice of the decision to the person. If the individual is restored to the voter roll, the Committee shall
instruct the election contractor to mail a ballot to the individual with sufficient time to return it prior to
that year’s deadline for receipt of ballots.

G. Challenges to the Inclusion of a Voter on the Voter Roll.

1. A qualified voter may raise a challenge to the inclusion of a name on the VMA voter roll no later than
April 1. The challenging party must provide notification of a challenge to the Committee via its email
inbox, or by certified mail addressed to the Election Committee at the Village Office, and include (a) the
name and address of the voter whose place on the voter roll is being challenged, and (b) any evidence
that the person believes supports the challenge.

2. The Committee shall notify the individual whose eligibility is being challenged, who shall have the
right to respond and present any relevant information to the Committee to support its decision-making.
The Committee shall review the public records, to gather additional information relating to the voter’s
eligibility.

78



3. After review of the information presented and the applicable public records, the Committee shall
vote on whether the individual will remain “qualified,” or be removed from the voter roll or designated
“Not Qualified.” Any voter removed from the voter roll or designated “Not Qualified” shall be notified in
writing, as required in section C.4.f. above.

H. Final Certification and Record-Keeping

After the conclusion of the Election Day deadline for changes to the voter roll, the Committee Chair and Vice- 
Chair shall review the current copy of the voter roll to confirm that it reflects any updated information and 
present the roll to the full Committee for a vote to certify. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall then certify the final 
voter roll by signing and dating a copy of the updated voter roll, initialing and dating the pages, and 
completing and signing the form attesting that it is the final official version being used for that year’s Village 
Council Election. Voting records shall be preserved according to the Village’s approved Document Retention 
Schedule. 

APPENDIX B: ELECTION FORUM PROCEDURE 

1. The election forum shall be held between April 16 and April 30 each year, at least ten (10) business days
before Election Day. The Election Committee shall finalize the venue, date, time, and details for the forum
after consulting with the candidates about their preferences and availability. The forum shall run for at
least ninety (9O) minutes, and may run for up to two hours at the moderator’s discretion. The Committee
shall ensure community access to the forum by Zoom or other remote means, to make the forum readily
accessible for the candidates and residents. The Committee may hold more than one forum after April 16.

2. The election forum shall be strictly impartial: (a) the forum must cover a broad range of issues, with
questions applicable to all candidates; (b) all candidates must have equal time to present their views; and
(c) the moderator and Committee members must remain neutral and in no way indicate or imply approval
or disapproval of any candidate.

3. One member of the Election Committee shall moderate the forum; a second member shall serve as the
timekeeper. The VMA staff shall assist the Committee in setting up the technical logistics.

4. All VMA residents are welcome to participate directly (by Zoom, or via a call-in number). Residents may
email questions to the Committee in advance at VMAelections@martinsadditions.org or submit
questions to the Committee by other means. Residents may submit forum questions anonymously, and
may ask live questions when called on during the forum. No candidate is permitted to see the questions
prior to the forum. The Committee shall compile the advance questions from residents and provide the
list to the forum moderator.

5. VMA forum structure:

a. A 1-minute welcome and introduction from the moderator or Committee chair.

b. A 2-minute opening statement from each candidate.

c. Residents' questions:

1 minute for each question from a resident. 
A 2-minute answer from each candidate. 
Each candidate is allowed a 1-minute follow-up round on each question if a candidate wants 
to respond. 

d. A 2-minute closing statement from each candidate.

e. The moderator thanks the candidates and residents for participating and closes the forum.

79

mailto:VMAelections@martinsadditions.org


The Election Committee may revise the specific format timing elements at its discretion, provided 
that all candidates shall have equal time to make their statements and respond to each question. 

The moderator: 
a. shall rotate the order of calling on the candidates to respond to the residents’ questions.

b. shall include both live questions from residents and the questions submitted in advance.

c. shall keep the time balanced fairly among all the candidates to maintain a level playing field.

d. shall have discretion to choose which questions to ask.

The timekeeper shall hold up “15 SECONDS” and “TIME” cards, as needed, for the candidates, the 
moderator, and the residents to see. The timekeeper may also use a bell or other means to signal 
when time is up. 

6. The VMA staff shall record the forum and post the audio and video on the VMA website, to be readily
accessible to VMA residents.

7. Public notice: The Election Committee shall publish the formal notice about the venue, date, time, Zoom
link and call-in number for the forum by email via the Village public communication channels, in the VMA
newsletter, and in the official VMA election information packet that is sent by mail to all VMA households.
The Committee shall post an additional forum notice by email two days in advance, and again on the
morning of the forum. The Committee may also post informal reminders on the village listserv.

80



Ordinance Process Discussion
Dec 2023 VMA Council Meeting

81



February 2021 Council Meeting
Draft Policy to Require Explanations of Proposed Ordinances

The minimum process required by the Charter Sec. 502 is generally as follows:

• Council discusses an issue (typically, after placing it on a meeting agenda), and directs
counsel to prepare a draft ordinance.

• Council discusses the draft at a second meeting.
• Council introduces the draft at a third open meeting and provides notice of introduction

and notice of the hearing date to the residents (per Charter Sec. 502(b));
• Council has a public hearing on the draft at a fourth open meeting, and takes action on

the draft, after considering the public comments.
• Typically 3 or 4-month process, or longer, based on how much discussion and amending

takes place.
• The Council can do more than the minimum required.
• It is common for a written summary to accompany notice of introduction of an ordinance.

Otherwise, the required “notice” is not very helpful.  This summary is often included in a
newsletter or some other form of notice.

82



Policy to Require Explanations of Proposed Ordinances 
Feb 2021 Presented by Council Member Alexander 

83



Town of Somerset
Resolution Adopting Protocol for 
Amendment of the Town Code
See attached 

84



 

Town of Somerset 

Resolution Adopting Protocol for Amendment of the Town Code 

Resolution No.:   

Introduced:  11/16/20 

Adopted:   

Effective Date:   

WHEREAS, the Town of Somerset Charter, Section 83-9, provides in pertinent part that, 

“No ordinance shall be passed at the meeting at which it is introduced, nor shall it be acted upon 

until notice of its introduction and title has been published ... [and] At any regular or special 

meeting of the council held not less than six nor more than sixty days after the meeting at which 

an ordinance was introduced, it shall be passed; or passed as amended, or rejected, or its 

consideration deferred to some specified future date…”; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Somerset Charter, Section 83-7, provides that, “A majority of the 

members elected to the council shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but no ordinance 

shall be approved without the favorable votes of at least three members of the council.” 

WHEREAS, the Town of Somerset Charter, Section 83-8, provides in pertinent part that, 
“The council shall by resolution determine its own rules and order of business...”. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Somerset Code, Section 5-22, provides that, “The agenda for the 

meetings of the Mayor and the Council shall be formulated by the Mayor, with the assistance of the 

Clerk-Treasurer; provided, however, that no item shall be placed on the agenda by the Mayor without the 

approval of the President of the Council or, if the President is not reasonably available, with the approval 

of the next most senior member of the Council. The Clerk-Treasurer shall circulate the agenda to all 

members of the Council. Any agenda item proposed in a timely manner by two Councilmembers shall be 

included in the agenda”; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that in order to aid the Council in the discussion, 

introduction, and adoption of new legislation, the procedures set forth in the attached should be 

adopted. 

WHEREAS, this Resolution was considered in open session on the ____ day of 

__________, 2020. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT: 

RESOLVED that, except in the case of an emergency (as defined in the 

attached) and except when otherwise impractical to do so based upon the 

circumstances, the attached protocol shall be followed for the adoption of 

ordinances to amend the Town of Somerset Code; and 

RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

adoption and shall be filed by the Clerk-Treasurer and kept available for 

public inspection. 

85



 

ATTEST: TOWN OF SOMERSET 

________________________________ _________________________________ 

Matt Trollinger, Manager/Clerk-Treasurer Marnie Shaul, President 

Town of Somerset Town of Somerset 

Approved: 

_________________________________ Date: ________ 

Jeffrey Slavin, Mayor 

Town of Somerset 

86



 

Town of Somerset 

Protocol for Amendment of the Town Code (December 2020) 

Presentation and Discussion 

1. The Mayor or a Council member may present for discussion an issue requiring potential

amendment of the Town Code.  Such an issue may be presented by either: (i) advance placement

on the agenda of a regular or special meeting of the Town Council; (ii) the Mayor’s suggestion to

the Council at a meeting; or (iii) a Council member’s motion made at a meeting, and approved

by majority vote of the Council.

Per the Town Code, Sec. 5-22, issues can be placed on a meeting agenda by the Mayor with the 

approval of the President, or by the proposal of at least two Council members.  

2. Following discussion of an issue, the Council may by motion direct the Town Attorney or

some other person to draft an ordinance.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, either: (i) the Mayor or President, with the approval of the other; 

or (ii) at least three members of the Council, may direct the Town Attorney to draft an ordinance 

in advance of the presentation of the issue in order to aid the discussion.   

Nothing in these procedures prevents the Mayor or a Council member from having a draft 

ordinance prepared in advance of the presentation of the issue, provided the drafting does not 

involve the incurring of expenses to be paid by the Town. 

Introduction 

3. After a draft ordinance has been prepared, it may be introduced by motion approved by

majority vote of the Council.  Introduction is the formal act of the Council approving a draft for

further discussion and possible action. Per the Charter, Sec. 83-9, once an ordinance has been

introduced, notice of the introduction and the ordinance’s title shall be provided to Town

residents.

Per State law (Md. Code, Land Use Art. Sec. 20-509), if the ordinance concerns building 

regulations, a copy of the ordinance shall be provided to the Montgomery County Council at 

least 30 days prior to adoption. 

Adoption 

4. After an ordinance has been introduced, it shall be placed on one or more meeting agendas for

further discussion, public comment, and possible Council action.  Per the Charter, Sec. 83-9, the

meeting at which an ordinance is adopted shall be held not less than six (6) nor more than sixty

(60) days after the meeting at which the ordinance was introduced.

87



 

Per State law (Md. Code, Land Use Art. Sec. 20-509), if the ordinance concerns building 

regulations, the meeting at which an ordinance is adopted shall be held no sooner than 30 days 

after a copy of the ordinance was given to the Montgomery County Council. 

Per the Charter, Sec. 83-7 any ordinance requires favorable votes from at least three (3) Council 

members for adoption.   

Except as required by the Town Charter and State law, these procedures may be suspended in the 

event of an emergency, as provided in Charter Sec. 83-9.  As used herein, “emergency” means 

unforeseen circumstances that threaten the health, safety, and welfare of Town residents and/or 

property in the Town.  Also, these procedures may be modified as deemed necessary by the 

Council based on the circumstances in order to provide additional opportunity for resident or 

committee input, or for such other reasons deemed appropriate by the Council. 

88



Explanation of Ordinance No.: 2023-11-1: To amend the code of ordinances to add building requirements 
applicable to above-grade stormwater collection and drainage devices. 

Village Council consideration of a building application revealed certain ambiguities in the building code. 
Specifically, what was deemed a “projection” or “appurtenance” subject to building setbacks was unclear 
when applied to new stormwater drainage practices. Officials from Montgomery County Department of 
Permitting Services concluded that certain stormwater drainage devices, including micro-bioretention 
planter boxes, are exempt from County building regulations, even in situations where sloping topography 
causes such devices to be significantly above grade.  

In the Village, certain things had been explicitly mentioned (but not codified) as allowable in past Council 
deliberations, such as swing sets and fire pits. The fact that some things appeared to be permitted raised 
questions about what should be excluded or allowed. In the recent case, the applicant argued that the 
stormwater drainage device, if separated from the house by a couple of inches, should not be deemed a 
“projection” or “appurtenance.” The proposed revision explicitly imposes setback requirements on 
structures such as bioretention boxes that rise at least 12 inches above grade, provides that 
“appurtenances” include items that are located within 10 feet of a building, and removes ambiguities 
about code interpretation. 

(Arthur Alexander, December 13, 2023) 

89



1 

Ordinance No.: 2023-11-1 
Introduced:   
Adopted:   
Effective Date:  

THE VILLAGE OF MARTIN’S ADDITIONS 

SUBJECT:  AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 
ADD BUILDING REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO ABOVE-GRADE 
STORMWATER COLLECTION AND DRAINAGE DEVICES 

WHEREAS, Local Government Article, Section 5-202 of the Maryland Code grants to the 
legislative body of every incorporated municipality in Maryland, including the Village of Martin’s 
Additions, general power to pass such ordinances not contrary to the Constitution of Maryland, or 
public general law, as they may deem necessary in order to assure the good government of the 
municipality, to protect and preserve the municipality’s rights, property, and privileges, to preserve 
peace and good order, to secure persons and property from danger and destruction, and to protect the 
health, comfort and convenience of the citizens of the municipality;  

WHEREAS, Maryland Code, Land Use Article, Section 20-509 grants to the legislative 
body of incorporated municipalities in the Maryland-Washington Regional District, general power to 
adopt building regulations for the protection of the public health, safety, and welfare; the 
preservation, improvement, and protection of lands, water, and improvements in the municipal 
corporation; and to regulate the construction, repair, or remodeling of buildings on land zoned for 
single-family residential uses at it relates to fences, walls, hedges, and similar barriers; signs; 
residential parking; residential storage; the location of structures, including setback requirements; the 
dimensions of structures, including height, bulk, massing, and design; and lot coverage, including 
impervious surfaces; 

WHEREAS, Maryland Code, Local Government Article, Section 5-211 authorizes the 
legislative body of each municipal corporation in the State of Maryland to make reasonable 
regulations concerning buildings to be erected within the limits of the municipality, including a 
building code and the requirement for building permits;   

WHEREAS, Section 501 of the Charter of the Village of Martin’s Additions authorizes the 
Village Council to pass such ordinances as it may deem necessary for the preservation of the 
property, rights, and privileges of the Village and its residents;      

WHEREAS, after proper notice to the public, the Village Council introduced the following 
Ordinance in an open meeting conducted on the on the ____ day of _____________, 2023;  

WHEREAS, to comply with Maryland Code, Land Use Article, Section 20-509, on the ____ 
day of _____________, 2023, a copy of following Ordinance was submitted to the Montgomery 
County Council for its comments;  

WHEREAS, the Montgomery County Council did not submit any comments; 

90



2 

WHEREAS, officials from the Montgomery County Department of Permitting Services 
have indicated that certain stormwater drainage devices, including, but not limited to, micro-
bioretention planter boxes, are deemed exempt from County building regulations, including 
setbacks, even in situations where, due to sloping topography, such devices may be significantly 
above grade;  

WHEREAS, the Village Council finds that the Village building regulations do not currently 
separately address such devices and should therefore be amended; 

WHEREAS, the County Code, Sec. 59-4.1.7.B.5.b.ii, provides that “[a] permanent rainwater 
collection or harvesting system may project a maximum of 3 feet into any side street, side, or rear 
setback;” 

WHEREAS, the Village Council finds that the foregoing Ordinance would assure the good 
government of the municipality, protect and preserve the municipality’s rights, property, and 
privileges, preserve peace and good order, secure persons and property from danger and destruction, 
and protect the health, comfort and convenience of the citizens of the Village of Martin’s Additions, 
and is necessary for the preservation of the property, rights, and privileges of the Village and its 
residents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Village Council does hereby adopt the following Ordinance. 

BE IT ORDAINED AND ORDERED, this ____ day of_____________, 2023, by the Village 
Council, acting under and by virtue of the authority given it by the Maryland Code and the Charter 
of the Village of Martin’s Additions, that the Village Code is hereby amended as follows: 

* * *

Section 6-101.  Definitions 

For the purposes of this Chapter, the following words and phrases shall have the following 
meanings: 

* * *
(4) “Building” means a structure on a lot which has one or more stories and a roof and is designed
primarily for the shelter, support or enclosure of persons or property of any kind. “Building”
includes above-grade projections, elements, and appurtenances, and equipment, including, but not
limited to, porches, decks, breezeways, steps, stoops, exterior stairways, bay windows, oriel
entrances, balconies, vestibules, air conditioners, heat pumps, and generators, and stormwater
collection, harvesting, infiltration, and drainage devices, including but not limited to micro-
bioretention planter boxes.

* * *

91



3 

Section 7-101.  Definitions 
* * *

(3) “Building” means a structure on a lot which has one or more stories and a roof and is designed
primarily for the shelter, support or enclosure of persons or property of any kind. “Building” includes
above-grade projections, elements, and appurtenances, and equipment, including, but not limited to, 
porches, decks, breezeways, steps, stoops, exterior stairways, bay windows, oriel entrances, balconies,
vestibules, air conditioners, heat pumps, and generators, and stormwater collection, harvesting,
infiltration, and drainage devices, including but not limited to micro-bioretention planter
boxes. “Building” includes all projections, elements, appurtenances, and equipment that are
attached to or located within five (5) feet of a building surface.  “Building” excludes projections,
elements, and appurtenances, and equipment that are constructed at or below grade, such as a
stairwell or patio.

* * *

Section 7-402.  Construction Standards and Requirements 

* * *
(e) Setbacks

* * *

(5) Projections, elements, appurtenances, and equipment (main buildings)

(i) Bay windows, oriel entrances, balconies, and vestibules no greater than ten (10) feet
wide, and cornices, eaves, and chimneys shall be permitted to project a maximum of
two-and-one half (2.5) feet into any setback area.

(ii) Unenclosed porches, decks, breezeways, steps, stoops, and exterior stairways may
project a maximum of nine (9) feet into the front or rear setback area and three (3)
feet into any side setback area.

(iii) Air conditioners, generators, and heat pumps may project a maximum of five (5)
feet into any front or rear setback area

(iv) Stormwater collection, harvesting, infiltration, and drainage devices with a
height not exceeding twelve (12) inches, including but not limited to micro-
bioretention planter boxes, may project a maximum of three (3) feet into any 
side or rear setback area. Height is measured from the surface of the adjoining 
ground. Where the elevations of adjoining grounds differ, the measurement 
shall be made from the surface of the lower ground. 

(v) Any other projection, element, appurtenance, or equipment not expressly listed
in this subparagraph (5) shall not be afforded an exception and must comply 
with the required setback for the building.  

92



4 

* * *

AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED AND ORDERED, by the Village Council, acting 
under and by virtue of the authority granted to it by the Maryland Code, and the Charter of the 
Village of the Village of Martin’s Additions, that:  

(1) If any part or provision of this Ordinance is declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, the part or provision held to be invalid shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any remaining part thereof; and 

(2) This Ordinance shall take effect on the ____ day of _____________, 2023 (at least 20
days after adoption). 

ATTEST:   THE VILLAGE OF MARTIN’S ADDITIONS 

____________________________ __________________________________ 
Susan Fattig, Secretary  Arthur Alexander, Chair 

Village Council 
Underline indicates new material 
Strikethrough indicates material deleted 
* * * indicates material unchanged

93



December 2023 VMA Treasurer Report Page 1 of 3 

Village of Martins Additions 
Financial Report for December 2023 

Jeffrey Blander Treasurer 
Thursday December 14th, 2023 

Assumptions 
• Income includes revenue from permit fees, country revenue sharing, income tax, property tax, and

interest.
• Expenses include those from general government (printing, insurance, office lease, telephones, etc.),

salaries and benefits, professional fees (accounting, legal, permitting, etc.), streets (lighting and
maintenance), waste and recycling, other (tree maintenance, community events, etc.)

• Does not include ARPA funds

Total current assets $5,656,540 
Investment reserves (Walkability, streets, other) $1,500,000 
Emergency reserves $1,000,000 

Current assets less reserves shown above:   $3,156,540 

Net change from previous month   $   271,752 

In the first 5 months of the fiscal year, there are no significant surprises. Legal fees are noted as 
higher than expected for this point in the year. The Village office also incurred some additional 
one-off training costs. VMA received its first larger trench of tax revenue ($353,756), thus is not 
unexpected to have a higher net positive variance given off cycle nature receipts.  

There are two capital projects underway. Expenses incurred to date $25,250 (widening Quincy) 
and $8,500 (Walkability: Brookville Sidewalk and traffic study). There are several budget 
categories being paid for with ARPA funds and the VMA office is working with our accountant to 
properly report these on a monthly accrual basis and as required by April 2024. 

Near-term follow-up activities 
• VMA Staff, auditors, and accountants completed the annual audit and submitted by Oct. 31st

2023). A readout and discussion of the Audit will be scheduled at the Dec. 2023 Council
meeting.

• Follow-up with the Village auditor and accountant on recommendations to formatting and
changes, particularly any suggestions on the format of the monthly reports and/or how to
make the annual audits more efficient.

• On-going outreach to different monthly reports from nearby municipalities. Compare formats
and types of analysis, thresholds, or financial “health” indicators/ratios used.

94



December 2023 VMA Treasurer Report Page 2 of 3 
95



December 2023 VMA Treasurer Report Page 3 of 3 
96


	Agenda
	Goverance Letter 2.0
	Audited Financial Statements 2.0
	November 16 - Meeting Minutes
	Minutes Attachment 1 - VMA Annual Survey - Nov 2023 -JMB (2 Slides per page)
	Minutes Attachment 2 - Election comm report - Council mtg Nov 16, 2023
	Manager's Report
	Schedule for the 2024 Election
	Explanation of proposed Election ordinance
	2024 ELECTION ORDINANCE - December 2023
	Dec VMA Council (Ordinance)- Blander
	Town of Somerset Resolution
	Explanation of Ordinance No 2023-11-1
	No. 2023-11-1 (stormwater devices)
	VMA Treasurers Report - FINAL - Dec-14-2023



